
 
August 17, 2020 

 
Memorandum from President Murdaugh  
 
 
The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32304 

 
The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District 
Board of Trustees is provided for your use at the Monday, August 17, 2020 
Board Meeting. 
 
The meeting will be held in the Student Union Ballroom on our Main Campus 
at 444 Appleyard Drive, Tallahassee, Florida. The public may also register to 
attend virtually at https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2020/aug/ 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 
 

 

  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/ot-meeting/2020/aug/


Agenda 

District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 

444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32308 

Monday, August 17, 2020 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

            i.         Moment of Silence 

            ii.        Pledge of Allegiance  

COMMENTS 

            i.         Board Chair 

            ii.        Board Members  

            iii.       President  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. June 15, 2020 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

2. The District Board of Trustees 2020 Board Self-Evaluation 

Recommend the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community College 

acknowledge and accept the results of the 2020 Board Self-Evaluation as 

presented.   

3. Election of Officers 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allow the governing board to focus their 

time and attention on action items that require more elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the 

consent agenda is to support efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific recommendation, then the 

trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the Chair.  This action item will be considered in the 

regular order of business as an individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or discussion will remain on the 

consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and 

unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 

consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 



4. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. (May and June 2020) 

Authorize payment of invoice as presented. 

5. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 

6. Architect Invoices 

Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 

7. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

8. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

TCC Foundation 

9. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

Academic Affairs 

10. 2020-2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards, 

Public Charter Schools and Private Schools  

That the Board approves the articulation agreements. 

11. Academic Curriculum Changes  

That the Board approve the recommendation for the program revision, new 

courses, and course changes as attached. 

Administrative Services 

12. Annual Inventory of Property Assets  

Presented as an information item only, no action required. 

13. Disposition of Surplus Property Assets  

Authorize the College to dispose of the items listed. 

14. Policy Manual Changes 

Approve revision of College policy as presented. 

15. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

 

 



16. RFQ 2020-05 Award Recommendation 

Approve the recommended construction manager at risk, Cook Brothers Inc., for 
the TCC Welding Technologies Laboratory project. 
 

17. Fund Analysis - July 

For information only, no Board action required. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

WORKSHOP 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

September 21, 2020                              Location:  Main Campus 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



June 15, 2020  Page 1 of 4 

Minutes 
District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32304 
Virtual Meeting details are available at 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2020/June/  
June 15, 2020 

Business Meeting – 2:30 PM 

 
The June 2020 District Board of Trustees virtual meeting was called to order by Chair Lamb at 
approximately 2:30 p.m. 

Members Present:  Chair Lamb, Trustees Callaway, Grant, Messersmith, Moore and Pople  
Absent:  Trustee Kilpatrick Via phone:  None 

Others Present:  President Murdaugh, Candice Grause, Lenda Kling, Don Herr, Craig Davis, Craig Knox, 
Trevoris McDaniel, Bill Spiers, Josh Willoughby, Rob Hall, Heather Mitchell, Barbara K Wills, Nyla Davis, 
Bobby Jones, Madeline Pumariega and Alice Maxwell  
Via Zoom:  Al Moran, Brittany Barnett, Rachel Laudadio, Tracy Woodard, Angela Long, Ayanna Young, 
Gary Smiekle, Robbie Gaffney, Chip Singletary, Gregory Williams, Anthony Jones, Tina Workman, Kimberly 
Moore, Amy Bradbury, E.E. Eunice, Kalynda Holton, Dustin Frost, Sheri Rowland, Jessica Griffin, Chris 
Russell, Lei Wang, Scott Balog, Henry Coles, Selina Starling, Mike Robeck, Patricia Manning, Javonni 
Hampton, Jacque Parramore, Freddy Menendez and Jennifer Russell 

COMMENTS 

i.         Board Chair Lamb asked everyone to stand for a moment of silence and the pledge of allegiance. He 
stated he had received numerous congratulatory calls about our being in the Aspen Top 10; giving credit 
to the TCC administration, faculty and staff.   

ii.        Board Members – Several Trustees concurred with the comments made by the Chair. 

iii.       President Murdaugh stated the Trustees are an important part of the TCC success. He shared there 
was a recent college-wide zoom meeting about the Aspen announcement; which began with a 
conversation about the George Floyd situation, indicating Black Lives and Black Minds Matter. He said he 
has challenged employees with what we need to do to be the employer of choice, how we role model as a 
partner of choice, and how we help our students get degrees and become citizens.  

He shared a follow-up call with faculty and staff resulted in some very good suggestions, sharing we are 
currently categorizing, determining the scale at which we could implement them. He stated this is not our 
last meeting. He indicated there was another call with our student leadership, where he primarily listened 
and asked questions. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. May 2020 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Pople 

  Motion passed unanimously.  

 2. 2020 Presidential Evaluation Meeting Minutes 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Messersmith SECOND: Trustee Callaway 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2020/June/


June 15, 2020  Page 2 of 4 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 
Director Maxwell provided information on media coverage for the Aspen Top 10, student assistance 
during pandemic, the Be Essential Campaign, our graduation website, etc.  Trustee Moore stated the 
graduation video was one of the best in the state and she  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None 

NEW BUSINESS 
Approval of Consent Agenda 

  3. Attorney Invoice – April 
Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

4. Human Resources Report 
Approve the report as presented. 

5. Sponsored Programs – Provider 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
6. Architect Invoices 

Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 

MOTION: Trustee Callaway  SECOND: Trustee Pople 
  Motion passed unanimously.  

TCC Foundation 
7. TCC Foundation Update 

VP Mitchell shared many of the events and mailings done during their time working away from 
the office. 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

Academic Affairs 
8.  Tallahassee Community College and Lively Technical College Regional Career Pathways 

Agreement 

That the Board approve the career pathway agreement with Lively Technical College. 
MOTION: Trustee Messersmith SECOND: Trustee Moore 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

9. Laboratory/Course and Distance Learning Fees for 2020-2021 

That the Board approve the laboratory/course and distance learning fees as presented 
and direct staff to conduct an assessment of fees to identify opportunities to reduce 
student cost. 

MOTION: Trustee Pople  SECOND: Trustee Messersmith 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

10. Academic Curriculum Changes  

That the Board approve the recommendation for the program revision, new courses, and 
course changes as attached. 

MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

11. Annual, Continuing and Post Award Contract Recommendations  

That the Board approve the recommendations for annual, continuing and post award 
contracts in the attached list. 

MOTION: Trustee Pople  SECOND: Trustee Moore 
  Motion passed unanimously. 



June 15, 2020  Page 3 of 4 

 
12. Addendum to the 2020-2021 Articulation Agreement with County School Boards, Public 

Charter Schools and Private Schools 
Information Item Only 

Administrative Services 
13. Use of College Personnel and Facilities 

Approve the use of College resources for Foundation DSO activities as presented  
MOTION: Trustee Callaway  SECOND: Trustee Grant 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

14. Bookstore Service Contract 

Approve a one-year renewal of the Follett contract for bookstore services. 
MOTION: Trustee Pople  SECOND: Trustee Messersmith 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

15. Changes to Salary Schedule 

Approve updates to the 2020 – 2021 Salary Schedule as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Grant  SECOND: Trustee Moore 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

16. Accounts Receivable Write-Off 

Trustee Moore said it appears we are doing a much more aggressive job of resolving potential 
issues before they get to write-off stage, congratulating everyone. 

Authorize write-off of accounts receivables. 
MOTION: Trustee Grant  SECOND: Trustee Pople 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

17. Construction Status Report 
Presented as an information item only. 

18. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2021-22 Through 2025-2026 

Approve the 2021-22 through 2025-26 CIP, as summarized on the CIP-2 form. 
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Messersmith 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

19. Disposition of Surplus Property Assets 

Responding to Chair Lamb, VP Wills stated these items have no useful life and will be discarded. 

Authorize the College to dispose of the items listed. 
MOTION: Trustee Grant  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

 20. Fund Analysis - May 
For information only, no Board action required. 

21. College Operating Budget for FY 2020-21 

Approve the College’s FY 2020-21 Operating Budget. 
MOTION: Trustee Messersmith  SECOND: Trustee Grant 

  Motion passed unanimously. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
22. 2020 - 2021 Schedule of Board Meetings 



June 15, 2020  Page 4 of 4 

Request Board approve schedule as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 

Motion passed unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None  

WORKSHOP 
VPs Wills shared we initially focused on communication, financial support, accessibility and technology. 
VP Mitchell stated they had a SOS Campaign to focus on food, virtual learning and general emergency to 
provide laptops, food, rent, funds for international students not covered by federal funds, etc. She said 
this year we will continue with scholarship dollars, eagle relief, and the Justin Dousa-Valdez mental health 
fund.   

VP Wills indicated we have continued student support via the Learning Commons, Library, orientation, 
advising, virtual dance party, along with other electronic support. She displayed an overview of the CARES 
Emergency Grants distribution for students and the utilization of fees during remote learning. She shared 
we created “no cost” training programs, a “Be Essential” campaign, and the Jump Start and Summer 
Scholars programs. 

Provost Pumariega shared an overview of the restart/reimagine task force made up of campus leaders, 
faculty, staff, student representatives and external stakeholders. She stated they aligned to CDC and State 
guidelines, prioritized health and safety, protected and supported academic excellence, provided 
guidelines and protocols for departments upon return to campus, etc.  

She said the plan to return to campus includes health and safety; operations; academic continuity; 
student support; meetings, events, travel and visitors; technology; communications; and legal 
implications. She shared faculty and staff are being advised of a four-stage approach for returning to on-
campus work locations.  She stated students will be offered classes online, Live online, physically 
distanced on-campus, and possibly a combination of the Live and on-campus classes.  

Chair Lamb complimented the task force for the excellent work that has been done. President Murdaugh 
asked if the Trustees were being asked questions in the community that we have not yet answered. 
Trustee Grant confirmed mandatory COVID testing will not be required to return to campus. Trustees 
Callaway and Pople indicated they were impressed with what has been done. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Murdaugh recognized the birthdays of Trustee Callaway, Trustee Pople and Chair Lamb.  He 
shared we went live on Workday Student during this process; thanking VP Rowland, VP Ingerman and 
others. He reminded Trustees their Form 1 is due by July 1st.   

NEXT MEETING DATE 
August 17, 2020                    Location:  Main Campus 

ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting adjourned at approximately 4:33 p.m. 

Minutes approved at the regular meeting of the District Board of Trustees on August 17, 2020. 
 
 
 
            
Eugene Lamb, Jr.    Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
Chair      President 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Lei Wang, Ed.D.                                                                                                                             
Associate Vice President for Institutional Effectiveness 

   

SUBJECT: The District Board of Trustees 2020 Board Self-Evaluation 

 

 
Item Description 
The Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC), as 
the accrediting agency for Tallahassee Community College, requires Boards to define and 
regularly evaluate their respective responsibilities and expectations. In accordance with 
SACSCOC requirements, the members of the District Board of Trustees have completed the 
2020 Board Self-Evaluation Survey. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached summary of the results of the 2020 Board Self-Evaluation reflect input from all 
seven members of the District Board of Trustees. The summary is presented for Board 
consideration and discussion, with goals of: 

• identifying areas for improvement; 

• achieving a better understanding of what members expect from themselves and    
each other to perform as an effective Board; 

• identifying strategies to enhance Board performance; and 

• gaining awareness of noteworthy strengths and characteristics. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no funding/financial implications. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
This is the second year the Board has completed a self-evaluation. 
 
Recommended Action 
Recommend the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community College acknowledge 
and accept the results of the 2020 Board Self-Evaluation as presented.   
 

 



 

2020 Board Self-Evaluation 

The District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community College 

 

 

5 = Excellent 
4 = Above Average 
3 = Average 
2 = Below Average 
1 = Unsatisfactory 
 

DBOT AVERAGE 
RATING 

(TOTAL DBOT 
POINTS) 

The Board ensures the College 
 provides accurate and timely information in order to perform Board 

responsibilities and make decisions. 

5 

(35) 

The Board focuses on policy  
issues, not on administrative matters. 

5 

(35) 

The Board ensures the financial  
resources of the College are being used to provide sound educational 

programs by reviewing monthly fund analysis reports and approving the 
annual operating budget. 

5 

(35) 

The Board ensures that the college allocates institutional financial  
resources for programs and services in a legal and competitive 

manner. 

5 

(35) 

The Board is regularly informed of changes in state policies and 
statutes,  

and recommended responses and actions of the state college system. 

5 

(35) 

The Board regularly reviews TCC's mission and strategic plan. 
4.86 

(35) 

The Board supports TCC's programs and activities by attending 
College  
events. 

5 

(35) 

The Board helps inform the community of the College's needs. 

4.71 

(35) 

5 



The Board has a comprehensive understanding of the needs of the  
College's service district. 

(35) 

The Board informs the President of community contacts, involvement  
and issues. 

5 

(35) 

The Board is knowledgeable about TCC's educational programs and  
services. 

4.86 

(34) 

The Board stays current on social, economic, and educational trends 
that affect the College.  

5 

(35) 

 

 

Table 1. In terms of both structure and focus, what are the strengths of the Board? 

The policy focuses on student success.  The board is collaborative and cohesive.   

Communication with the President and each other on the Board of Trustees.  Support for the College 
and staff. 

Our board has diversity in both life experiences and vocational expertise.  We are united in our focus on 
student outcomes and we work well as a unit. 

Diversity of thought and background.  Each trustee brings a different set of skills and abilities. 

The diverse life adventures of the members of the Board of Trustees provides depth and a wide range 
of knowledge and input. 

1. Varied experiences & backgrounds 
2. Many professions & expertise - evidence 

 

Table 2. In what areas is the Board most in need of assistance, support, or training to better perform 
its responsibilities? 

This is a very well functioning board.   

N/A 

I believe we are well supported now but we continue to rely on staff for an understanding of the details 
of certain items that come before the board. 

Continued emphasis on the impact of TCC on students. 

I don't believe we are "in need" of any of the above citations. We regularly cover a wide variety of items 
and operations in our monthly workshops. 

The administration continually evaluates what we need - very proactive here 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ELECTIONS - Chairman of the Board calls for nominations for Board Chair 
and Vice Chair.  
 
Chair and Chair Elect Nominations: 
 
Chair:  The floor is open for nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College: 
 
A Board member makes the nominations. 
 
After all nominations are made the Chair responds:   
 
I will entertain a motion that _________________ and 
___________________ be elected to the positions of Chair and Vice Chair, 
respectively, of the District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community 
College. 
 
Motion by Board member 
Second 
Vote 
 
 
After election the meeting is immediately resumed under the direction of 
the newly elected Chair 
 
 
 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. (May and June 2020) 

 

 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoice from Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to the collective bargaining process.  
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the September 19, 2016 
Board meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund.  The current amount due is 
$1,329.75 for May 2020 and $6,877.67 for June 2020 for a total of $8,207.42 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoice as presented. 

 
 



Tallahassee Community College
Barbara K. Wills, Chief Business Officer, Vice President for 
Administrative Services
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

June 8, 2020
72301

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-010844

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

05/07/2020 JCC Analyze potential return-to-work (impact bargaining) issues 1.70

05/08/2020 JCC Research and analyze non-renewal of annual contract instructors / 
duty to bargain

3.60

Current Services 5.30 $1,325.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 5.30 $250.00 $1,325.00

Expenses Incurred

Duplication 4.75

Thru 05/31/2020 $4.75

Payments

05/13/2020 Payment ACH rec'd 5/13/20 Invoices 71383, 71658 4,787.00

05/18/2020 Payment ACH rec'd 5/18/20 Invoice 71863 (fees) 3,525.00

8,312.00

Total Current Work $1,329.75

Previous Balance Due $3,933.80

Balance Due $5,263.55



Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
101 North Monroe Street, Suite 900

Tallahassee, FL  32301
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

June 08, 2020
72301

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



Date Prof Matter ID/Client Sort
Matter Description
Narrative

Activity Code Component
Task Code

Units Price Value Ext.
Amt.

Component: Dup

10/17/2019 25480.006/ Tallahassee Community 
College
Tallahassee Community  College / L&E / 
UFF Bargaining
Duplication

Dup 19.00 0.25 4.75 4.75

Component: Dup 19.00 4.75 4.75

Grand Total:  19.00 $4.75 $4.75

6/8/2020 2:42:55 PM

Statement number 72301 and cost

Page 1 of 1

Listing
Bryant Miller Olive P.A.



Tallahassee Community College
Barbara K. Wills, Chief Business Officer, Vice President for 
Administrative Services
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

July 7, 2020
72545

25480.002

For professional services rendered and expenses incurred 
regarding Tallahassee Community College / L&E / General

Expenses Incurred

Westlaw research 77.67

Thru 06/30/2020 $77.67

Payments

05/06/2019 Payment ACH rec'd 5/6/19 Invoice 69071 1,875.00

1,875.00

Total Current Work $77.67

Previous Balance Due $0.00

Balance Due $77.67

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
101 North Monroe Street, Suite 900

Tallahassee, FL  32301
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 1



WestLaw Charge Calculation
For the Month of May 2020

Billable Amount Bill Total % Billable Contract Amount Total Amount Billable to Clients

123,910.17 308,602.55 0.4015 6784 2,723.91$               

Bill amt per client Bill Total % Billable Contract Amount Total amount per client Client # initials

3,533.00 308,602.55 0.0114 6784 77.67$                    25480.002 kaw



               

                 

                 

                                        

                 

                  

                   

                                           

                

                 

                                            

            

                

                  

                                    

                                  

25480.002

17594649  APA, KAROLINA

05/15/2020 SPECIAL PRICING INCLUDED CHARGES(I)

TRANSACTIONAL SEARCHES          19      2,717.00

DOCUMENT DISPLAYS          40        244.00

TOTAL SPECIAL PRICING INCLUDED CHARGES(I)          :00I          59I          :00I          0I      2,961.00I

05/18/2020 SPECIAL PRICING INCLUDED CHARGES(I)

TRANSACTIONAL SEARCHES           4        572.00

DOCUMENT DISPLAYS          13          0.00

TOTAL SPECIAL PRICING INCLUDED CHARGES(I)          :00I          17I          :00I          0I        572.00I

TOTAL 25480.002 CHARGES          :00S          76S          :00S          0S      3,533.00S

DATABASE CONNECT/ TOTAL
CLIENT/REFERENCE TIME TRANS COMMUNICATION DOC/LINES CHARGE IN USD*

1000373190 Z

ACCT# 1000373190 CLIENT/REFERENCE BY USER BY DAY DETAIL
BRYANT MILLER & OLIVE PA INVOICE # 842467357 PAGE
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301-1546 MAY 01, 2020 - MAY 31, 2020 POSTING # 6135456623 8

THE RATES USED TO CALCULATE CLIENT/REFERENCE CHARGES HAVE BEEN DESIGNATED BY SUBSCRIBER OR ARE BASED ON RETAIL RATES.
SUBSCRIBER AGREES NOT TO DISSEMINATE THIS REPORT TO ANY THIRD PARTY OR TO REPRESENT THE CHARGES AS ACTUAL ONLINE CHARGES.

* INCLUDES APPLICABLE TAXES

tprice
Highlight
25480.002 

tprice
Highlight
3,533.00S




Tallahassee Community College
Barbara K. Wills, Chief Business Officer, Vice President for 
Administrative Services
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

July 7, 2020
72541

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-010844

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

06/03/2020 JCC Review correspondence from UFF 0.20

06/03/2020 JCC Review status of proposals 0.70

06/04/2020 JCC Review union "guidelines" for reopening colleges and universities 1.40

06/04/2020 JCC Analyze "guidelines" issues for possible bargaining obligations 2.60

06/04/2020 JCC Conference call with management for possible bargaining 
obligations

0.90

06/05/2020 JCC Review correspondence / UFF 0.50

06/05/2020 JCC Review Task Force Report 1.80

06/06/2020 JCC Review Operations Report 1.20

06/06/2020 JCC Review Budget information 1.20

06/09/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / UFF bargaining 
process

0.20

06/10/2020 JCC Analyze potential back-to-work issues / alleged safety concerns 1.30

06/10/2020 JCC Review UFF proposals / preparation for bargaining 3.30

06/12/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / College proposals 0.30

06/13/2020 JCC Review discussions / notes regarding previous bargaining sessions 0.60

06/13/2020 JCC Analyze potential bargaining obligations reference Task Force 
recommendations

1.80

06/16/2020 JCC Preparation for negotiations 1.00

06/17/2020 JCC Preparation for negotiations 0.50



06/18/2020 JCC Conference call with client (J. Murdaugh, C. Grause, bargaining 
team) / policies

0.40

06/19/2020 JCC Attend negotiations and conference bargaining team 2.80

06/22/2020 JCC Review TCC proposals / waivers 0.30

06/22/2020 JCC Analyze / update waiver issues 1.30

06/22/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / UFF negotiations 0.50

06/22/2020 JCC Analyze issues in connection with impasse proceedings 1.40

06/23/2020 JCC Review documents and draft correspondence to M. Balinsky 0.20

06/25/2020 JCC Telephone conference with client (C. Grause) / negotiations 0.40

06/29/2020 JCC Review correspondence / center 0.40

Current Services 27.20 $6,800.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 27.20 $250.00 $6,800.00

Payments

06/19/2020 Payment ACH rec'd 6/19/20 Invoice 72081 3,450.00

3,450.00

Total Current Work $6,800.00

Previous Balance Due $1,813.55

Balance Due $8,613.55

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
101 North Monroe Street, Suite 900

Tallahassee, FL  32301
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

July 07, 2020
72541

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Human Resources Report 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval for personnel actions. 
 
Overview and Background 
Pursuant to College Policy 04-06 and 04-17, the College brings forth a request to approve 
appointments, separations and outside employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2020-2021 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented. 

 



Name Department Effective Date

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date

William Montgomery Maintenance Technician II Facilities Maintenance June 8, 2020

Christopher Lau Information Specialist Admissions & Records/Registrar July 6, 2020

Kenneth Bowman Simulation Program Manager Healthcare Professions July 6, 2020

Lauren Williams Business Analyst Student Affairs July 6, 2020

Bill Barnes Cashiering Coordinator Financial Aid July 13, 2020

Roderick Pompey Lead Instructor, Commercial Vehicle IT & CDL Program July 13, 2020

Name Position Department Effective Date

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date

Trinae Banks Teen Traffic Safety Program FDOT Teen Traffic Safety June 1, 2020

Octavia Ash Program Logistics Coordinator DOC Vocational Training June 15, 2020

Traci Moody Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC DeSoto CI June 16, 2020

Juan Garcia Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Lowell CI June 17, 2020

Marisa Barnes Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Franklin CI June 17, 2020

Saritza Legault Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Hernando CI June 17, 2020

Ashli Winborne Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC New River CI June 22, 2020

Chelsea Faircloth Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Calhoun CI June 22, 2020

Roosevelt Rogers Career & Technical Education/GED Prep DOC Vocational Training July 1, 2020

Yashica Washington Project Manager DOE Test Development Center July 1, 2020

Kamorris Brown Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Sago Palm CI July 13, 2020

Aaron Sowders Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Union CI July 20, 2020

Trent Dawn Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Reception & Medical July 20,2020

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position

None to Report

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type

Dianna Scherlin Associate Dean Healthcare Professions May 29, 2020 Resigned

Laura McLeod Clinic Assistant, Dental Program Healthcare Professions May 29, 2020 Resigned

Christine Barrilleaux College Success Faculty Behavioral, Social Science & Education May 31, 2020 Retired

Leslie Griffin College Success Faculty Behavioral, Social Science & Education May 31, 2020 Retired

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Separations (All Employees) 

Re-Appointments (All Employees)



Linda Inyang Registration Specialist Admissions & Records/College Registrar May 31, 2020 Retired

Rhonda MacLeod Math Faculty Science & Math May 31, 2020 Retired

James Carr Physical Science Faculty Science & Math June 8, 2020 Retired

Kirsten Svela EMS Clinical Coordinator EMS Faculty June 20, 2020 Resigned

Eddie Gainer Campus Police Officer Campus Police June 25, 2020 Resigned

Andrew Tucker Economics Faculty Business, Industry & Technology June 30, 2020 Retired

Maria Santos Student Services Case Manager Disability Support Services June 30, 2020 Resigned

Corbin Dukes Computer Analyst DOE Test Development Center June 30, 2020 Contract Not Renewed

Lynn Redmond Business Office Manager DJJ  Contract and Grants June 30, 2020 Contract Not Renewed

Priscilla Johnson Career Development Specialist Contract and Grants June 30, 2020 Dismissed

Chad Hale Career Development Specialist Contract and Grants June 30, 2020 Contract Not Renewed

Angela Rivera Advising Specialist Advising and Retention July 3, 2020 Resigned

Richard Barineau CJ Instructional Coordinator FL Public Safety Institute July 9, 2020 Resigned

Dan Propst Landscaper FPSI Custodial July 15, 2020 Resigned

Alex Levine College Success Coach Contract and Grants July 23, 2020 Resigned

Name Position Department Employer Position

Emily Lee Manager Center for Innovation Elect Kelly Otte Campaign Manager

Margo Thomas Program Administrator Recruiting & K-12 Outreach Your Budget Coach Teacher

Sherrod Mosley Training Specialist II DJJ Training Autism After 21 Program Coordinator

Name Position Department Office Position

Tracey Stallworth Advising Specialist Advising and Retention

Gadsden County Public 

Schools Superintendent of Schools

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

 ______________________ 

SUBJECT: Architect Invoices 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the architect invoice submitted for the months of 
June and July 2020.  
 
Overview and Background 
The College is now under contract with five architectural firms; Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 
PA, BKJ, Inc. Architecture, Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc., DAG Architects Inc., and 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC to provide architectural and engineering services for 
projects at all sites and counties. To ensure quality, the five firms will be assigned projects on 
a rotational basis with standardized hourly fees. 
 
Architects I Lewis + Whitlock, PA - $0.00 
BKJ, Inc. Architecture - $0.00 
Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc. - $0.00 
DAG Architects, Inc. - $30,020.00 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC - $0.00 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board last authorized architect invoices at the June 15, 2020 meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The funds for several minor projects (approximately $1.1 million) were provided in the 
General Renovations/Remodeling PECO allocations the College received for FY 18/19. 
Funds for the Master Plans were available in the Capital Improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 
 

 



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 20037_0620 Invoice date 07/10/2020

Page 1

H2 Engineering 5,720.00

Mechanical Consultant

Units Rate
Billed


Amount

Conceptual Design and Grant Application

Consultant

Thomas J. Miller 26.50 150.00 3,975.00

Associate Principal

Rachelle McClure 164.50 125.00 20,562.50

Project Architect

Roger T. Godwin 5.00 200.00 1,000.00

Jack D. Baker 54.00 200.00 10,800.00

Subtotal 59.00 11,800.00

Principal

Hours Rate
Billed


Amount

Phase subtotal 250.00 36,337.50

Conceptual Design and Grant Application

Professional Fees subtotal 250.00 36,337.50

Professional Fees

Invoice subtotal 42,057.50

IN KIND DONATION OF DAG ARCHITECTS SERVICES -12,037.50

Invoice total 30,020.00

20037_0620 07/10/2020 30,020.00 30,020.00

Total 30,020.00 30,020.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Professional Architectural Services

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 20037_0620
Date 07/10/2020

Project 20037  TCC Center for Innovation



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

  

SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
Florida College Systems Activities Association Contract and Amendment 1 
This award and amendment is to provide an executive staff position, and two support 
positions to direct the Florida College System Activities Association. The Florida College 
System Activities Association provides academic and athletic opportunities for students. 
The amount of this contract is $185,526, including an indirect cost rate of 2%. The funding 
period is 7/1/20 through 6/30/21.       
 
Florida Sterling Foundation 
This award is to provide executive staff support to direct the Sterling Council. The Florida 
Sterling Council was established in 1992 as a not-for-profit 501(c)3 corporation endorsed 
by the Executive Office of the Governor. The mission is “Serving Florida as the epicenter of 
business quality through assessment, training, and recognition for performance Excellence 
and proven results.” The amount of this contract is $175,075, including an indirect cost rate 
of 14%. The funding period is 7/1/20 through 6/30/21. 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Both programs are annual renewals. 
 
 



Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the awards is $25,137.76.  
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Provider 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
Florida Department of Education – Carl D. Perkins Postsecondary Vocational Education 
Program – Amendments 2 and 3 
These amendments provide a no cost extension through 9/1/20 and utilize unexpended 
funds from Personnel, travel and scholarships for instructional software, medical equipment 
and dental equipment refurbishing.  
 
Florida Department of Education – Perkins V – TCC – Director of Career and Technical 
Education Outreach and Recruitment Amendment 1 
This amendment provides a no cost extension through 9/1/20.  The deliverables and 
budget are impacted accordingly. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Pathways to Career Opportunities Amendment 1 and 2 
These amendments provide no cost extensions through 6/30/21. The deliverables and 
budget are impacted accordingly. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Postsecondary Assessment FY 19-21 Amendment 5  
TCC will provide the support, coordination and implementation of activities related to the 
provisions of the development, administration, scoring and reporting fifty-four, computer-
based examinations.  The project is for a three-year period and this third year is from 7/1/20 
through 6/30/21.  The contract amount is for $1,007,917.92 for this year with an indirect 
cost of 10%.  
 



Florida Department of Juvenile Justice – 2017-2023 – Amendment 4 
This amendment extends the 2017-2020 contract to 2023.  The amount of this amendment 
is $4,174,233.12 for a total award of $7,823,332 with an indirect cost rate of 14%. The 
funding period is through 6/30/23. 

 
Florida Department of Corrections – IDEA Special Education (DOCSPED) 2017-2023 – 
Amendment 1 
This amendment extends the 2017-2020 contract to 2023.  The amount of this amendment 
is $1,257,300, with an indirect cost rate of 10%. The funding period is through 7/31/23.  
 
Florida Department of Education – Support for the Implementation of John McKay 
Scholarship Program for Students with Disabilities – FY20 – Amendment 1 
This amendment is a budgetary amendment to increase materials and supplies for 
resources needed through 8/31/20.  The deliverables are not impacted by this amendment. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Test Development Center 
TCC will provide contracted staff positions for K-12 Assessment Development. These 
positions are essential to the continued development of state academic assessments. The 
project is for a three-year period from 7/1/20 through 6/30/23. The contract amount is for 
$6,738,165.  Indirect costs are not allowed by statute.  
 
US Department of Labor – Mine Safety Award and Amendment #1 
This award will help promote healthful workplaces for miners in Florida by assisting with 
training to prevent death and disease, as well as to reduce the frequency and severity of 
injuries from mining related incidences. The related amendment extends the grant through 
9/30/21. The amount of this award is $180,857, including an indirect cost rate of 8%. The 
funding period is from 10/1/19 through 9/30/21.  
 
US Department of Education – CARES Act Strengthening Institutions Program 
The Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund is authorized through the CARES Act, and 
provides supplemental funding for Title III institutions to cover costs associated with 
significant changes to the delivery of instruction due to the coronavirus. The amount of the 
award is $397,807.  The funding period is through 5/28/2021. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 
This project provides contracted staff responsible for the implementation of Compass 100 
hybrid and Thinking for a Change curricula within DOC facilities throughout Florida.  The 
amount of this award is $2,361,277,74, including an indirect rate of 10%.  The current 
funding period is from 7/1/20 through 6/30/21. 
Florida Department of Education – Take Stock in Children  
This award is to provide resource for students from grades 6-12 in Gadsden, Leon and 
Wakulla counties to increase the number of potential first generation-in-college students 
who successfully receive a college education. The award is for $55,977, including an 
indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is from 7/1/20 through 6/30/21. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Vocational Instruction 
This project provides vocational instruction and programming (i.e., textbooks, consumable 
supplies, industry exams) to DOC inmate-students at regional facilities. The award is for 
$781,554.99, including an indirect cost rate of 10%. The funding period is from 7/1/20 
through 6/30/21. 

 



Triumph Foundation – Infrastructure and Logistics Training Fast Track Projects 
This project provides workforce certifications in Commercial Vehicle Driving and Masonry in 
Wakulla County.  The award is for $276,500, including an indirect cost rate of 0%.  The 
funding period is through 6/30/21. 
 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region III Trust Award 2020-2021 
This continuing award will provide the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission 
(CJSTC) with approved advanced and specialized training courses through Florida Public 
Safety Institute for local law enforcement officers. The amount of the award is $116,800, 
including an indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is from 7/1/2020 through 
6/30/2021.  
 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region XV Trust Award 2020-2021 
This continuing award will provide the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission 
(CJSTC) with approved advanced and specialized training courses through Florida Public 
Safety Institute to law enforcement officers statewide. The amount of the award is 
$294,960, including an indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is from 7/1/2020 through 
6/30/2021.  
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Florida Department of Education – Carl D. Perkins Postsecondary Vocational Education 
Program – Amendments 2 and 3 
Amendment 1 approved at the Trustees meeting in February. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Perkins V – TCC – Director of Career and Technical 
Education Outreach and Recruitment Amendment 1 
The initial award approved at the Trustees meeting in May. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Pathways to Career Opportunities Amendment 1 and 2 
The initial award approved at the Trustees meeting in April. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Postsecondary Assessment FY 19-21 Amendment 5  
Amendment 4 approved at the Trustees meeting in April.  
 
Florida Department of Juvenile Justice – 2017-2023 – Amendment 4 
Amendment 3 approved at the Trustees meeting in February. 

 
Florida Department of Corrections – IDEA Special Education (DOCSPED) 2017-2023 – 
Amendment 1 
The initial award approved at the Trustees meeting in August, 2018. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Support for the Implementation of John McKay 
Scholarship Program for Students with Disabilities – FY20 – Amendment 1 
The initial award approved at the Trustees meeting in November, 2019. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Test Development Center 
This is a renewal of a three-year period award. 
 



US Department of Labor – Mine Safety Award and Amendment #1 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Take Stock in Children  
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Vocational Instruction 
This is an annual renewal. 

 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region III Trust Award 2020-2021 
This is an annual renewal.  
 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region XV Trust Award 2020-2021 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the awards is $1,016,762.99. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         
Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

 Choose an item. 

SUBJECT: TCC Foundation Update 

 

 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TCC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TCC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors and number of gifts. 
 
The Foundation would also like to extend an invitation to DBOT members to the following 
events: 
August 25:  President’s Circle Event, 5;30 – 7:00 p.m., Hybrid of in person and by ZOOM 
September 3:  Blue & Gold Society Lunch, 12:00 - 1:00 p.m., TCC Student Union 
September 22:  TCC Alumni & Friends Hall of Fame Inductee Luncheon:  11:45 – 1:00, TCC 
Student Union 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
None required.  Report provided for information only. 

 



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 19/20

 July - June



TCC Foundation - Funds Spent



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 20/21

 July - July 29



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Madeline Pumariega, M.Ed.                                                                                                   
Executive Vice President and Provost 

   

SUBJECT: 2020-2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School 
Boards, Public Charter Schools and Private Schools  

 

 
Item Description 
This item represents the 2020-2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the 
College and each of the three district partners in the Tallahassee Community College service 
area, the charter schools in the Tallahassee Community College service area and the private 
school partners in the Tallahassee Community College service area for approval as required 
by Florida law.  
 
Overview and Background 
Each agreement contains information regarding Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. The Emergency Order suspends 
testing requirements for student eligibility for initial enrollment in college dual enrollment 
courses taken through December 31st, 2020, provided by section 1007.271(2). Subsequently, 
the articulation agreement includes information about the application process for admittance 
into the Jump Start Program, a program that emerged from and adheres to the emergency 
order. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees, lab, or online course fees. The school districts 
pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students taking courses on TCC’s campus. 
This also includes online courses. Moreover, the school districts pay for the cost of the 
instructor if the course is taught at the high school site by a TCC instructor.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approves these agreements. 
 
Recommended Action 
That the Board approves the articulation agreements. 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Christ Classical Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21) Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the Christ Classical Academy, hereinafter 
referred to as the School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 
end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of the Christ Classical Academy and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 



2 
 

 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  
 
 



3 
 

 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 

 
 
Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor. Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5: Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6: Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 
 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 
 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 

dual enrollment program 
 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement. 
  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 

point averages on an individual student basis  
 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 

 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 9th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Christ Classical Academy, Leon County, 
Florida and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have 
adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors                                                                                                         

Christ Classical Academy 

 

    
Date  Principal, Christ Classical Academy 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 

Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21) Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the Community Christian School, hereinafter 
referred to as the School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 
end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of the Community Christian School and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   



2 
 

 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 



7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Christian School, Leon County, 
Florida and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have 
adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Community Christian School 

 

    
Date  Director, Community Christian School 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Crossroad Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and Crossroad Academy, hereinafter referred to as 
Crossroad Academy.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end 
July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
Crossroad Academy Board of Directors or designee.  Committee members from TCC will be 
appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Crossroad Academy Board of Directors and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.  
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 



7 
 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 



8 
 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 



9 
 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 



10 
 

 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



11 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



12 
 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 



14 
 

referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
 



15 
 

Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2020-2021 is $71.98.  The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2021 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 



16 
 

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



17 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Crossroad Academy, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Crossroad Academy School Board 

 

 

    
Date  Principal, Crossroad Academy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Leadership Academy and Tallahassee Community 
College 

Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the Community Leadership Academy, 
hereinafter referred to as the School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon 
signing and shall end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Principal at Community Leadership Academy and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   



2 
 

 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  
 
 



3 
 

 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 

 
 
Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 
 
 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 

point averages on an individual student basis  
 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 



11 
 

and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 

 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 



12 
 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 



13 
 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


14 
 

enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 



15 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 

TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Leadership Academy, Leon 
County, Florida and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida 
have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 
 
    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Community Leadership Academy School Board 

 

 

    
Date  Principal, Community Leadership Academy   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Florida State University Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and Florida State University Schools, hereinafter 
referred to as FSUS.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end 
July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
FSUS Board of Directors or designee.  Committee members from TCC will be appointed by 
the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the FSUS Board of Directors and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 
 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 



7 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 



8 
 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 



9 
 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 



10 
 

 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



11 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



12 
 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 



14 
 

referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
 



15 
 

Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2020-2021 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2021 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 



16 
 

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 



17 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Florida State University Schools, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Florida State University Schools 

 

    
Date  Principal, Florida State University High School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Gadsden County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Gadsden County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Gadsden County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.  
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 



7 
 

Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 



8 
 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 



9 
 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better). Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 



10 
 

 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



11 
 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 



12 
 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 



14 
 

referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
 



15 
 

Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2019-2020 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2021 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    



16 
 

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 



17 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Gadsden County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Gadsden County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Gadsden County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

John Paul II Catholic School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and John Paul II Catholic School, hereinafter 
referred to as the School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 
end July 31, 2021.  

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 

Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of John Paul II Catholic School and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 



2 
 

 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  
 
 



3 
 

 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 



7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility. The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2018 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of John Paul II Catholic School, Leon County, 
Florida and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have 
adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  John Paul II Catholic School Board 

 

    
Date  Director, John Paul II Catholic School  

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Leon County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Leon County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Leon County and the President 
of Tallahassee Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 

 
 
Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website.  

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 
 



7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 



8 
 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 



9 
 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
 
 



10 
 

 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 

 



12 
 

(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



14 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 



15 
 

1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2020-2021 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2021 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 



16 
 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



17 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Leon County, Florida and The District Board 
of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and caused it 
to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 
1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Leon County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Leon County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

North Florida Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 
 
Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and North Florida Christian School, hereinafter 
referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing 
and shall end July 31, 2021.  

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 

Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of the North Florida Christian School and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  
 
 

 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.    

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 



5 
 

semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 
Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 

 
Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 

point averages on an individual student basis  
 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 

 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

 

 

 



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the North Florida Christian School Board of Leon County, Florida 
and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, North Florida Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Director, North Florida Christian School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Providence Christian Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21) Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the Providence Christian Academy, hereinafter 
referred to as the School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 
end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of the Providence Christian Academy and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  
 
 

 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 



5 
 

semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 
Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 
 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  
 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Providence School Board of Tallahassee County, Florida and 
The Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have 
adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors                                                                                                         

Providence Christian Academy 

 

    
Date  Principal, Providence Christian Academy 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Robert F. Munroe Day School and Tallahassee Community College 

Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and Robert F. Munroe Day School, hereinafter 
referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing 
and shall end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of the Robert F. Munroe Day School and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods. High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment. High school guidance counselors will review with 
the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information will also 
be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor. Click here to access the form.    

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 



7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board. Textbooks purchased by the 
School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S. TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. 

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Robert F. Munroe Day School Board of Gadsden County, 
Florida and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have 
adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief 
executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation 
Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Robert F. Munroe Day School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Robert F. Munroe Day School 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Savary Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21) Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and Savary, hereinafter referred to as Savary 
Academy.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 
2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
Savary Academy Board of Directors or designee.  Committee members from TCC will be 
appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Savary Academy Board of Directors and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 



8 
 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 



9 
 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/College/Newsroom/Pages/Publications.aspx


10 
 

Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 

point averages on an individual student basis  
 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 

 



12 
 

(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 
enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 
 
 



14 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 



15 
 

TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Savary Academy, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors                                                                                                         

Savary Academy 

 

    
Date  Principal, Savary Academy 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tree of Life School and Tallahassee Community College 

Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the Tree of Life School, hereinafter referred to 
as the School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 
31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Principal at Tree of Life School and the President of Tallahassee Community 
College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 



3 
 

 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 

Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 

Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 



5 
 

semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 
Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tree of Life School, Leon County, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors                                                                                                         

Tree of Life 

 

    
Date  Principal, Tree of Life 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Maclay School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the Maclay School, hereinafter referred to as the 
School.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 
2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Head of School at Maclay School and the President of Tallahassee Community 
College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   



2 
 

 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 



5 
 

semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 
Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 

 
Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form. 
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 

dual enrollment program 
 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 



9 
 

 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 



10 
 

 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 

before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 



15 
 

XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Maclay School, Leon County, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

 

    
Date  Chair, The District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Maclay School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Maclay School  

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and Wakulla Christian School, hereinafter referred to 
as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end 
July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Director of the Wakulla Christian School and the President of Tallahassee 
Community College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 



2 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities.  Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.  Early admitted students will 
be exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 



5 
 

semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 
Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.  
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


7 
 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



8 
 

Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  



9 
 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process.  
 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 
 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 



10 
 

the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 



12 
 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 



14 
 

high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 
 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 



15 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the School Board and 

TCC 
 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school.  Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 

TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program.  

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities  
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

 

  



16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Wakulla Christian School Board of Wakulla County, Florida 
and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Director, Wakulla Christian School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

2020 – 2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2021.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 



2 
 

 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2020-2021, career dual enrollment through TCC is not available.  

 
 
 
 



3 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for Jump Start Students 
 
For Fall 2020 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  

 
Step 2:  Complete the Super Strong Assessment. 
 
Step 3: Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you to choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements. Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 

 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator to discuss the 
student’s academic plan. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of Super Strong assessment results 
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Jump Start Student Course Options on TCC’s Campus 
 
The list below reflects the courses available for Fall 2020: 

A. National Government (POS1041) 
B. Concepts of Positive Living (HSC1100) 
C. College Success (SLS1510) 
D. Composition I (ENC1101C)  
E. Intermediate Algebra (MAT1033)  
F. College Algebra (MAC1105C) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


4 
 

TCC Course Alternative Method for Dual Enrollment Eligibility (For Jump Students Only) 

ENC 1101 

ERW score ≥ 430 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

English Language Arts Reading Level ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade English Honors (10th grade or higher or meets 10th 
competencies) or; 

B or better in English course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAT 
1033  MGF 
1106  MGF 

1107 

Math score ≥ 480 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

Math FSA or Algebra EOC level  ≥ 4 or; 

B or better grade in Algebra 1 Honors, Algebra 2, or Algebra 2 Honors 

MAC 1105 

Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better grade in Pre-calculus or higher or; 

B or better in Math course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

MAC 1105C 
Math score ≥ 530 on PSAT/NMSQT or; 

B or better in Algebra 2 or Algebra 2 honors or; 

    

Placement in mathematics courses will be determined by the student’s algebra or non-algebra 
track program of study. 

Additional initial eligibility requirement includes an unweighted high school GPA of 3.0 or 
higher. 

Common placement tests scores (PERT, SAT, ACT) fewer than 2 years old can be used. 

  
Note: The Jump Start Program emerged from Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02, signed 
by Commissioner Richard Corcoran on May 15th, 2020. One of the provisions of the order 
suspends the testing requirement for student eligibility regarding initial enrollment in the 
college dual enrollment courses taken through December 31st, 2020. For the spring 
semester, student eligibility for initial enrollment in the College’s dual enrollment program 
will adhere to the previous requirements, unless otherwise noted by the Commissioner of 



5 
 

Education. Additionally, the jump start program will only be available to students in 9th, 
10th, 11th and 12th grade. 
 

Application Process for Traditional (New) Dual Enrollment Students 
 
For Spring 2021 Enrollment Only 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 
Note: If Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-02 continues through the spring, new dual 
enrollment students will adhere to the process listed in the section that reads: Application 
Process for Jump Start Students. 
  
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form. 
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.  
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.docx.pdf


6 
 

Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores 
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website. 

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 
 
  



7 
 

Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT.  Reading scores to test for dual 
enrollment eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 
 

P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 
Reading 19 

ENC 1101 English 17 
Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
 After May 1st, 2017 

 
P.E.R.T. 
Reading 106 

ENC 1101 Writing 103 
Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 
Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 



8 
 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 
Reading 262 ENC 1101 

 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FCAT 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FCAT 
or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FCAT or 
Florida Comprehensive Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the 
English and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the 
college placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until 
the math portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math 
college readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 



9 
 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 
 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. High school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. Eligible courses 
may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 
Agreement.  
 
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/College/Newsroom/Pages/Publications.aspx


10 
 

Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 



11 
 

TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration procedures for dual enrollment 

 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2020-2021 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 19th, 2020 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2020 B session  

High school 

July 23rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2020 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 17th, 2020 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2020 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 24th, 2020 TCC First Day of Class  

August 25th, 2020 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 3rd, 2020 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 8th, 2020 Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2020. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 4th, 2020 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 7th, 2020  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2020 

 



12 
 

(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

December 14th, 2020 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 15th, 2020 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 7th, 2021 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 13th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 12th, 2021 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2021-
2022. 

High school 

March 26th, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 23rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3rd, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 7th, 2021 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules and guidelines stated in the student handbook which apply 

to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 
Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


13 
 

1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   
 

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment or a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



14 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before dual enrollment participation and monitoring of student performance while 
participating in dual enrollment 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 
The high school is responsible for making sure that all students who plan to participate 
in dual enrollment have completed an online TCC application. 
 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to insuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation.  The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses.  The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the School Board 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the district office at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for student transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XV. Responsibilities for Funding that Delineates Costs Incurred by the School Board and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 



15 
 

the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2020-2021 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2021 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 



16 
 

 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XVI. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVII. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



17 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Wakulla County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Madeline Pumariega, M.Ed.                                                                                                   
Executive Vice President and Provost 

   

SUBJECT: Academic Curriculum Changes  

 

 
Item Description 
This item presents proposed new courses and course changes. 
 
Overview and Background 
The Curriculum and Innovation Committee members review and make recommendations for 
Board approval for new and revised curriculum.  Due to changes by the State Board of 
Education as well as the revision of programs to meet workforce demands, there are several 
changes that are being proposed. 
 
The college is proposing to revise the Firefighter program.  Due to updated Fire standards 
that are required by the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training, the State Board of Education 
is recommending new course numbers, content, and change in the length of program. The 
median hourly wage is $20.43 for Leon, Gadsden, and Wakulla with a 6.3% job growth 
anticipated. 
 
TCC is also proposing two new courses:  ENC 1101C (English Composition with Co-
requisites and MAC 1105C (College Algebra with Co-requisites). The purpose of the new 
courses is to include supplemental and just-in-time support for students.  Students will benefit 
from having embedding tutors as well as intensive one-on-one conferences to support 
student success. The MAC 1105C course will also accelerate the mathematics pathway for 
students to receive college level math credit in their first math course.   
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
None 
 
Past Actions by the Board 

The Board approves the program revisions, new courses, and course changes each year. 

 
 



Recommended Action 
That the Board approve the recommendation for the program revision, new courses, and 
course changes as attached. 

 



PROGRAM CHANGE 

 

Firefighter (492 clock hours) 

Based on recommendations from the State Board of Education and the Bureau of Fire Standards 

and Training, TCC is proposing to delete courses and replace with the state approved courses 

for the program.  The program length is also proposed to change from 398 to 492. The changes 

are based on updated requirements related to the fire standards. 

 

 

Add courses:  

FFP 0030, Firefighter I (191) 
FFP 0031, Firefighter II (301) 
 

  Delete courses: 

FFP 0010, Firefighter I (206) 

FFP 0020, Firefighter II (192) 

 

 

NEW COURSES 

 

Course ID Course Name Rationale for New Course 

MAC 1105C College Algebra with 
Corequisites (4 credit hours) 

The course addresses the low completion in 
MAT1033 and also the low success rates for those 
students who do complete MAT1033 and 
subsequently enroll in MAC1105. The purpose of 
this course is to reduce time to math requirement 
completion and increase the success of students in 
gateway mathematics. This is an accelerated 
mathematics pathway for students to receive 
college level math credit in their first math course. 
The course will include supplemental and just-in -
time resources in the form of two additional hours, 
intended for students that bypass the normal 
prerequisite of MAT1033. 

ENC 1101C College Composition with 
Corequisites (3 credit hours) 

This course covers, in combined form, the learning 
outcomes and objectives of College Composition 
(ENC 1101) in conjunction with the critical reading 
learning objectives of the upper level Integrated 
Reading and Writing (ENC 0027) course and other 
foundational resources. Stressing both reading and 
writing as reciprocal processes, the course 
emphasizes the rhetorical principles of academic 
reading and writing, including the following: thesis 
statement, development with specific information 
and analysis; organization and transition; diction, 
tone, and sentence style; and the grammar and the 
mechanics of academic English. 

 



 

 

COURSE REVISIONS 

 

Course ID Course Name Type of 
Change 

Current  Proposed Rationale for 
Change 

FFP 0010 Firefighter I Course 
Number; 
credit hour; 
content 

FFP 0010; 206 
clock hours 

FFP 0030; 191 
clock hours 

The standards 
for Firefighter 
were changed 
by the Bureau of 
Fire Standards 
and Training 

FFP 0020 Firefighter II Course 
Number; 
credit hour; 
content 

FFP 0020; 192 
clock hours 

FFP 0031; 301 
clock hours 

The standards 
for Firefighter 
were changed 
by the Bureau of 
Fire Standards 
and Training 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

SUBJECT: Annual Inventory of Property Assets  

 

 
Item Description 
This item presents the status of the annual inventory of the College's property assets for 
the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
Staff has the responsibility to record the College's property assets and conduct an annual 
inventory for the designated items of furniture and equipment. Staff has successfully 
completed the annual inventory of the College's property assets, which includes a total of 
527 items having a total cost at the time of acquisition of $9,595,688.60. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no funding or financial implications. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
An inventory of College property is conducted annually and the results are reported to the 
Board for review. 
  
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only, no action required. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

  

SUBJECT: Disposition of Surplus Property Assets  

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval to dispose of property assets designated as surplus. 
  
Overview and Background 
The College has the responsibility to periodically dispose of accumulated surplus property 
assets which are obsolete and serve no useful function or their continued use is not 
economically feasible. These assets may include IT equipment, furniture and vehicles, but not 
facilities or land.  
 
Florida Statutes (section 274.05) allows a government unit discretion to classify as surplus 
any of the property assets that meet the description listed above. The College has deemed 
the items on the following list as surplus in accordance with this statute. 
 
Florida Statutes (section 274.06) allows property assets to be disposed of in the most efficient 
and cost-effective manner as determined by the government unit. The College may offer 
these items for sale according to the provisions of the statute, or the items may be donated or 
destroyed if they are without value. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no funding or financial implications. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
During previous years, the Board has authorized the College to dispose of surplus property 
items in accordance with the procedures defined in Florida Statutes. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize the College to dispose of the items listed. 
 

 



Asset  Tag Description Acquired Date
Purchase 
Amount

Depreciated 
Value

8572 EZ Go Cart Workhorse 7/1/2000 $5,821.65 $0.00
8584 Presenter System Visual Samsung 7/1/2001 $15,026.31 $0.00
9367 Sony Dvcam Studio Recorder 7/1/2002 $5,924.25 $0.00
9567 Digital Switcher 7/1/2002 $24,924.00 $0.00
9574 Head, Dual 100/150 Ball Base GR 7/1/2002 $5,600.00 $0.00
9575 Head, Dual 100/150 Ball Base GR 7/1/2002 $5,600.00 $0.00
9601 JVC Studio Pkg with rear camera 7/1/2002 $13,400.00 $0.00
9609 Tripod System with head and skid 7/1/2002 $7,683.33 $0.00

11366 Omniprint (Forensic Print) 7/1/2003 $9,000.00 $0.00



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Policy Manual Changes 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval of Policy Manual changes in Chapter 3.0 – General 
Administration. 
 
Overview and Background 
The College brings forth a request to modify the College’s Policy Manual: revise Policy 03-01 
– Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful 
Harassment. 
 
Highlights of these changes are outlined below: 
 

 Policy 03-01 was revised to clarify definitions and processes prescribed by new 
regulations of Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972.  

 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
N/A. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board last took action on Policy 03-01 on March 19, 2018.  
 
Recommended Action 
Approve revision of College policy as presented. 
 

 



TALLAHASSEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

P O L I C Y  
 

 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-1 

 
TITLE: Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, 

Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

 

 
NUMBER:  03-01 

 

 
AUTHORITY: 

Florida Statute:  1001.64, 1001.65, 1006.35, 1006.67 

Florida Administrative Code:  6A-14.0262, 6A-14.060,  

6A-19.008 

Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended 
Executive Order 11246, as amended  
Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended  
Title II, Genetic Information Non-Discrimination Act of 2008 
Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, amended 1972 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
Title IX, of the Education Amendments Act of 1972 
Florida Educational Equity Act of 1984, as amended  

 

 
SEE ALSO: 

 

• Administrative 

Procedure 03-01-1AP: 

Equal Opportunity, 

Discrimination, Sexual 

Misconduct, and 

Unlawful Harassment;  

• Administrative 

Procedure 03-01-2AP: 

Title IX Sexual 

Harassment 

 

 

DATE ADOPTED:  12/01/97; revised 01/22/01; 09/21/09; 08/20/12; 11/17/14; 03/16/2015; 

08/24/15; 08/15/16; 03/19/18; 08/17/20 
 

 

 

A.  EQUAL ACCESS/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT 

 

Tallahassee Community College (TCC or the College) does not discriminate against any person 

on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic information, marital 

status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status in its 

programs and activities. 

 
As an institution of higher education, the College reaffirms its policies of equal opportunity and 

open admissions, and is committed to maintaining and promoting nondiscrimination in all 

aspects of its programs and activities. The College has an Equity Plan to ensure equal access/ 

equal opportunity to all individuals and has designated a College Equity Officer/Title IX 

Coordinator to ensure compliance with applicable TCC Policy, State and Federal laws. 

 
The College will broadly publish and circulate its policy of equal access/equal opportunity by 

including the policy in correspondence, media communication, and printed material.  The 

College will engage the services of only those professional organizations, employment agencies, 

contracts, or other agents whose policies are in alignment with the equal opportunity policy of 

the College. 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-2 

 

B. POLICY STATEMENT 

 

1. The  College  is  committed  to  having  a  learning  and  working environment that is free of 

discrimination, sexual misconduct, and unlawful harassment.  Discrimination, sexual 

misconduct, or harassment of students or employees in the learning and/or working 

environment will not be tolerated.  Accordingly, members of the college community, 

including students, faculty, administrators, staff, vendors and the public can expect 

professional and courteous treatment at all times. 

 

2. It shall be a violation of this policy for a faculty/staff, students, or vendors of the College to 

discriminate against, participate in sexual misconduct, or harass another student, faculty 

member, administrator, staff member, or vendor. 

 

3. The College will not tolerate retaliation against students, employees or witnesses for filing 

complaints, or protesting practices which are prohibited under this policy. 

 

4. Terms and conditions of employment based on a bona fide occupational requirement or 

distinction (i.e. gender specific restrooms, athletic activities, or other areas) is not a violation 

of this policy. 

 

5. Discrimination, sexual misconduct, and unlawful harassment on the part of vendors toward 

any member of the College community will not be tolerated.   Vendors will be required to 

promptly investigate claims of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or harassment reported 

against their employees or subcontractors. 

 

6. All complaints of discrimination, sexual misconduct, and unlawful harassment will be kept 

confidential to the extent allowed by law. 

 

 

C.  DEFINITIONS 

 

1. Complainant – is an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could 

constitute a violation of College policy. 

 

1.2.Determination - is the conclusion of a dispute by the rendering of a final decision.  

 

2.3.Discrimination - is defined as treating any member of the College community differently 

than others on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic 

information, marital status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual 

orientation, or veteran status, or other legally protected classifications. 

 
Conduct which falls under the definition of discrimination and which is prohibited by this 

policy includes, but is not limited to: 

 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-3 

a. Disparate treatment in employment, job placement, promotions, demotions, salaries or 

wages, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment, on the basis of one of the 

protected categories outlined above. 

 

b. Limiting a person’s access to athletic, social, cultural or other activities of the college on 

the basis of one of the protected categories outlined above. 

 
3.4.Gender Identity - refers to an individual’s internal sense of gender. A person’s gender 

identity may be different from or the same as the person’s sex assigned at birth.  

 

5. Preponderance of Evidence Standard – is an evidence standard which means concluding that 

a fact is more likely than not to be true.based on the more convincing evidence and its 

probable truth or accuracy, and not on the amount of evidence. 

 

4.6.Respondent – is an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that 

could constitute a violation of College policy. 

 

37.   Retaliation - is any adverse action taken against the person(s) who makes, or supports, or 

participates in the investigation of a complaint of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or 

harassment. 

 
4. 8. Sex - refers to either of the two major forms of individuals that occur in many species and 

that are distinguished respectively as female or male especially on the basis of their 

reproductive organs and structures.  

 

59. Sexual Misconduct - includes but is not limited to sexual violence, (which includes any kind 

of nonconsensual sexual contact), sexual harassment, sexual exploitation or any other 

conduct of a sexual nature that is nonconsensual, or has the purpose or effect of threatening, 

intimidating, or coercing.   

 

a. Sexual Exploitation - is defined as taking non-consensual or abusive sexual advantage of 

another for his/her own advantage or benefit, or to benefit or advantage any oneanyone 

other than the one being exploited, and that behavior does not otherwise constitute one 

of the sexual misconduct offenses. 

 

b. Sexual  Harassment -  is  defined  as  any unwelcome  sexual  advances,  requests  for 

sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct or communication of a sexual nature 

when: 

 

1. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used explicitly or implicitly as 

a basis for any decision affecting terms or conditions of an individual’s 

employment, academic status, participation in any program or activity, 

receipt of College services; or 

 

or 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.25",  No bullets or

numbering, Tab stops:  0", Left +  0.25", Left



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-4 

4.2.Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual’s 

work performance or academic experience by creating an intimidating, 

hostile, or offensive environment for work or learning. 

 

Sexual harassment can occur between any persons including students, faculty, 

administrators, staff, vendors, or visitors. 

 

 

c. Sexual Violence - is sexual offenses as outlined in the Uniform Crime Reporting 

Handbook, and defined as any sexual act directed against another person, without the 

consent of the complainantvictim, including instances where the complainantvictim is 

incapable of giving consent. 

 

10. Title IX Sexual Harassment – includes the following behaviors with respect to participation 

in the College’s education programs or activities, which include locations, events, or 

circumstances over which the College exercise substantial control over both the respondent 

and the context in which the sexual misconduct occurred.  Title IX Sexual Harassment -  is 

conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following: 

 

a. An employee conditioning educational benefits on participation in unwelcome sexual 

conduct (i.e., quid pro quo); or 

 

b. Unwelcome conduct that a reasonable person would determine is so severe, pervasive, 

and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the College’s 

education program or activity; or  

 

c. Sexual assault (as defined in the Clery Act), or dating violence, domestic violence or 

stalking as defined in the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA). 

 

611. Unlawful Harassment - is defined as conduct that is a) unwelcome and b) unreasonably 

interferes with an individual’s ability to learn or work due to the creation of an intimidating, 

hostile, or offensive environment. 

 
Extended definitions and examples of terms listed above may be found in TCC’s Glossary of 

Terms located on the TCC Equity and Civil Rights web page, and within Administrative 

Procedures AP03-01-1AP and 3-01-2AP. 

 

 

D.  REPORTING,  INVESTIGATION,  AND  RESOLUTION 

 

1.   Reporting 

 

The College strongly encourages persons to promptly report any occurrence of discrimination, 

sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment.  The registering of a complaint will not be used or 

held against the student or employee, nor will it have an adverse impact on the complainant’s 

educational or employment status. 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-5 

 

a. Complaints of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment involving 

applicants, faculty/staff, students, vendors, or guests should be filed promptlywithin 180 

days from the date of the incident via Tallahassee Community College’s (TCC) on-line 

Complaint Form, or directly with the College’s Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator at 

(850) 201-6074, or tolsonr@tcc.fl.edu, or postmark to: 

Tallahassee Community College 

Attn: Renae Tolson, Equity Officer & Title IX Coordinator 

Room 239 Administration Building 

444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895 

 

b. Any College personnel, student, vendor or guest who becomes aware of an alleged 

conduct of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment must report this 

information immediately to the College’s Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator. 

  

c.  All complaints of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment will be 

logged in the TCC Equity and Civil Rights Complaint Log.  The log will include the 

complaint number, complainant’s name, person whom the complaint is filed against, 

incident date(s), brief summary, and the determination/resolution.  The Equity 

Officer/Title IX Coordinator is the official custodian of the log. 

 

 

 

2. Investigation 

 
a.   Upon receipt of a complaint, the College Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator will 

coordinate with TCC’s Police Department, the Student Conduct and Community 

Standards OfficerStudent Affairs Office, the Human Resources Office Director and/or 

other TCC personnel as appropriate to ensure a supportive and safe environment.  The 

College will ensure an adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation of complaints, 

including the opportunity for the complainant and respondent to present witnesses and 

other evidence.  See TCC Administrative Procedure 3-01-1AP and 03-01-2AP for 

complete details regarding the reporting, investigation and resolution process. 

 

 

b. The Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator will assign one of the College’s trained 

investigators as the College’s Investigating Official of record for the complaint.  The 

College’s Investigating Official will follow state and federal guidelines, College Policy, 

Administrative Procedures AP03-01-1AP and 03-01-2AP, TCC’s Sexual Misconduct 

Guide, and the Student Code of Conduct, as appropriate, in reviewing the complaint.   

 

 

mailto:tolsonr@tcc.fl.edu


 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-6 

c Investigations will be completed within 60 calendar days from the date the complaint 

was filed, unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties or upon extenuating 

circumstances.   

 

d. The CollegeInvestigating Official will use a preponderance of evidence standard for 

resolving any conflicts in the evidence, and deciding the facts of the complaint.     

 

e. At the conclusion of the investigation, the Investigating Official will send the 

investigative report, including findings of fact,and proposed resolution, to the College 

Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator for review, and determination, or submission for 

hearing as appropriate.  See TCC Administrative Procedure 3-01-1AP and 03-01-2AP 

for complete details regarding the reporting, investigation and resolution process. 

 

3.  Resolution 

 

a. The College will take steps to prevent the recurrence of any discrimination or 

harassment found to have occurred upon an investigation, and to correct its 

discriminatory effects on the complainant and others, if appropriate. 

  

b. Once the complaint determination is made by the Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator, 

written notification will be provided to both the complainant and respondent, informing 

them of the determination of the complaintoutcome of the investigation and the 

subsequent appeals process. 

 

c. If the decision regarding an employee or student complaint is not satisfactory for the 

complainant or respondent, it may be appealed to the Equity Appeals Committee (the 

Appeals Committee).  The College offers both parties an appeal from determination of 

responsibility, from a school’s dismissal of a formal complaint or any allegations 

therein, on the following bases: procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the 

matter, newly discovered evidence that could affect the outcome of the matter, and/or 

Title IX personnel (investigators, coordinators and decision makers) had a conflict of 

interest or bias that affected the outcome of the matter.  The complainant or respondent 

must file a written appeal to the Equity Office within seven (7) calendar days after the 

decision is rendered.  The  Appeals Committee may adjudicate the complaint based on 

the records or may call witnesses or examine other documents as deemed necessary.  

The Appeals Committee will issue a final decision to the student or employee within 

fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving the appeal.   The decision of the Appeals 

Committee will be final and binding. 

 

 

E.  RETALIATION 

 

1. Retaliatory acts include adverse actions taken against the person who makes, or supports, or 

participates in the investigation of a complaint of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or 

harassment. 

 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-7 

2. Students and/or employees who believe that retaliatory actions have been taken against 

them for having filed a complaint of discrimination, sexual misconduct or harassment, or 

having provided testimony in an investigation should notify the College Equity Officer and 

Title IX Coordinator.  Any such reports will be investigated and findings of retaliatory 

conduct will be dealt with through appropriate action. 

 

 

F.  CONFIDENTIALITY/PUBLIC RECORDS 

 

1. All information regarding discrimination, harassment, retaliation, and sexual misconduct 

will remain confidential to the extent possible to provide for an effective investigation, and 

as allowed by law. 

 

2. Only those individuals necessary for the investigation and resolution of the complaint shall 

be involved. All parties to the complaint, including witnesses, should treat the matter under 

investigation with discretion and have respect for the reputation of everyone involved.   

 
3. Written records developed through the use of thisan internal complaint process are 

confidential in accordance with state law until a final determination is made. 

 

 

G.  FALSE COMPLAINTS 

 

Any person who knowingly files a false complaint of discrimination, harassment, retaliation, or 

sexual misconduct against another will be in violation of this policy. 

 

 

H.  DISCIPLINE 

 

Violation of this policy shall result in appropriate corrective and/or disciplinary action. 

 



TALLAHASSEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

P O L I C Y  
 

 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-1 

 
TITLE: Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, 

Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

 

 
NUMBER:  03-01 

 

 

AUTHORITY: 
Florida Statute:  1001.64, 1001.65, 1006.35 

Florida Administrative Code:  6A-14.060, 6A-19.008 

Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended 
Executive Order 11246, as amended  
Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended  
Title II, Genetic Information Non-Discrimination Act of 2008 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, amended 1972 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972 
Florida Educational Equity Act  

 

 

SEE ALSO: 
 

 Administrative 

Procedure 03-01-1AP: 

Equal Opportunity, 

Discrimination, Sexual 

Misconduct, and 

Unlawful Harassment;  

 Administrative 

Procedure 03-01-2AP: 

Title IX Sexual 

Harassment 

 

 
DATE ADOPTED:  12/01/97; 01/22/01; 09/21/09; 08/20/12; 11/17/14; 03/16/2015; 

08/24/15; 08/15/16; 03/19/18; 08/17/20 

 

 

 

A.  EQUAL ACCESS/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT 

 

Tallahassee Community College (TCC or the College) does not discriminate against any person 

on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic information, marital 

status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status in its 

programs and activities. 

 
As an institution of higher education, the College reaffirms its policies of equal opportunity and 

open admissions, and is committed to maintaining and promoting nondiscrimination in all 

aspects of its programs and activities. The College has an Equity Plan to ensure equal access/ 

equal opportunity to all individuals and has designated a College Equity Officer/Title IX 

Coordinator to ensure compliance with applicable TCC Policy, State and Federal laws. 

 
The College will broadly publish and circulate its policy of equal access/equal opportunity by 

including the policy in correspondence, media communication, and printed material.  The 

College will engage the services of only those professional organizations, employment agencies, 

contracts, or other agents whose policies are in alignment with the equal opportunity policy of 

the College. 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-2 

 

B. POLICY STATEMENT 

 

1. The  College  is  committed  to  having  a  learning  and  working environment that is free of 

discrimination, sexual misconduct, and unlawful harassment.  Discrimination, sexual 

misconduct, or harassment of students or employees in the learning and/or working 

environment will not be tolerated.  Accordingly, members of the college community, 

including students, faculty, administrators, staff, vendors and the public can expect 

professional and courteous treatment at all times. 

 

2. It shall be a violation of this policy for a faculty/staff, students, or vendors of the College to 

discriminate against, participate in sexual misconduct, or harass another student, faculty 

member, administrator, staff member, or vendor. 

 

3. The College will not tolerate retaliation against students, employees or witnesses for filing 

complaints, or protesting practices which are prohibited under this policy. 

 

4. Terms and conditions of employment based on a bona fide occupational requirement or 

distinction (i.e. gender specific restrooms, athletic activities, or other areas) is not a violation 

of this policy. 

 

5. Discrimination, sexual misconduct, and unlawful harassment on the part of vendors toward 

any member of the College community will not be tolerated.   Vendors will be required to 

promptly investigate claims of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or harassment reported 

against their employees or subcontractors. 

 

6. All complaints of discrimination, sexual misconduct, and unlawful harassment will be kept 

confidential to the extent allowed by law. 

 

 

C.  DEFINITIONS 

 

1. Complainant – is an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could 

constitute a violation of College policy. 

 

2. Determination - is the conclusion of a dispute by the rendering of a final decision.  

 

3. Discrimination - is defined as treating any member of the College community differently 

than others on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic 

information, marital status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual 

orientation, or veteran status, or other legally protected classifications. 

 
Conduct which falls under the definition of discrimination and which is prohibited by this 

policy includes, but is not limited to: 

 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-3 

a. Disparate treatment in employment, job placement, promotions, demotions, salaries or 

wages, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment, on the basis of one of the 

protected categories outlined above. 

 

b. Limiting a person’s access to athletic, social, cultural or other activities of the college on 

the basis of one of the protected categories outlined above. 

 
4. Gender Identity - refers to an individual’s internal sense of gender. A person’s gender 

identity may be different from or the same as the person’s sex assigned at birth.  

 

5. Preponderance of Evidence Standard – is an evidence standard which means concluding that 

a fact is more likely than not to be true. 

 

6. Respondent – is an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that 

could constitute a violation of College policy. 

 

7.   Retaliation - is any adverse action taken against the person(s) who makes, supports, or 

participates in a complaint of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or harassment. 

 
8. Sex - refers to either of the two major forms of individuals that occur in many species and 

that are distinguished respectively as female or male especially on the basis of their 

reproductive organs and structures.  

 

9. Sexual Misconduct - includes but is not limited to sexual violence, (which includes any kind 

of nonconsensual sexual contact), sexual harassment, sexual exploitation or any other 

conduct of a sexual nature that is nonconsensual, or has the purpose or effect of threatening, 

intimidating, or coercing.   

 

a. Sexual Exploitation - is defined as taking non-consensual or abusive sexual advantage of 

another for his/her own advantage or benefit, or to benefit or advantage anyone other 

than the one being exploited, and that behavior does not otherwise constitute one of the 

sexual misconduct offenses. 

 

b. Sexual  Harassment -  is  defined  as  any unwelcome  sexual  advances,  requests  for 

sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct or communication of a sexual nature 

when: 

 

1. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used explicitly or implicitly as 

a basis for any decision affecting terms or conditions of an individual’s 

employment, academic status, participation in any program or activity, 

receipt of College services; or 

 

2. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual’s 

work performance or academic experience by creating an intimidating, 

hostile, or offensive environment for work or learning. 

 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-4 

Sexual harassment can occur between any persons including students, faculty, 

administrators, staff, vendors, or visitors. 

 

c. Sexual Violence - is defined as any sexual act directed against another person, without 

the consent of the complainant, including instances where the complainant is incapable 

of giving consent. 

 

10. Title IX Sexual Harassment – includes the following behaviors with respect to participation 

in the College’s education programs or activities, which include locations, events, or 

circumstances over which the College exercise substantial control over both the respondent 

and the context in which the sexual misconduct occurred.  Title IX Sexual Harassment -  is 

conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following: 

 

a. An employee conditioning educational benefits on participation in unwelcome sexual 

conduct (i.e., quid pro quo); or 

 

b. Unwelcome conduct that a reasonable person would determine is so severe, pervasive, 

and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the College’s 

education program or activity; or  

 

c. Sexual assault (as defined in the Clery Act), or dating violence, domestic violence or 

stalking as defined in the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA). 

 

11. Unlawful Harassment - is defined as conduct that is a) unwelcome and b) unreasonably 

interferes with an individual’s ability to learn or work due to the creation of an intimidating, 

hostile, or offensive environment. 

 
Extended definitions and examples of terms listed above may be found in TCC’s Glossary of 

Terms located on the TCC Equity and Civil Rights web page, and within Administrative 

Procedures 03-01-1AP and 3-01-2AP. 

 

 

D.  REPORTING,  INVESTIGATION,  AND  RESOLUTION 
 

1.   Reporting 

 

The College strongly encourages persons to promptly report any occurrence of discrimination, 

sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment.  The registering of a complaint will not be used or 

held against the student or employee, nor will it have an adverse impact on the complainant’s 

educational or employment status. 

 

a. Complaints of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment involving 

applicants, faculty/staff, students, vendors, or guests should be filed promptly via 

Tallahassee Community College’s (TCC) on-line Complaint Form, or directly with the 

College’s Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator at (850) 201-6074, or tolsonr@tcc.fl.edu, 

or postmark to: 

mailto:tolsonr@tcc.fl.edu


 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-5 

Tallahassee Community College 

Attn: Renae Tolson, Equity Officer & Title IX Coordinator 

Room 239 Administration Building 

444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895 

 

b. Any College personnel, student, vendor or guest who becomes aware of an alleged 

conduct of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or unlawful harassment must report this 

information immediately to the College’s Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator. 

  

 

2. Investigation 

 
a.   Upon receipt of a complaint, the College Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator will 

coordinate with TCC’s Police Department, Student Affairs Office, Human Resources 

Office and/or other TCC personnel as appropriate to ensure a supportive and safe 

environment.  The College will ensure an adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation 

of complaints, including the opportunity for the complainant and respondent to present 

witnesses and other evidence.  See TCC Administrative Procedure 3-01-1AP and 03-01-

2AP for complete details regarding the reporting, investigation and resolution process. 

 

b. The Equity Officer/Title IX Coordinator will assign one of the College’s trained 

investigators as the College’s Investigating Official of record for the complaint.  The 

College’s Investigating Official will follow state and federal guidelines, College Policy, 

Administrative Procedures 03-01-1AP and 03-01-2AP, and the Student Code of 

Conduct, as appropriate, in reviewing the complaint.   

 

c Investigations will be completed within 60 calendar days from the date the complaint 

was filed, unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties or upon extenuating 

circumstances.   

 

d. The College will use a preponderance of evidence standard for resolving any conflicts in 

the evidence, and deciding the facts of the complaint.     

 

e. At the conclusion of the investigation, the Investigating Official will send the 

investigative report, including findings of fact, to the College Equity Officer/Title IX 

Coordinator for review and determination, or submission for hearing as appropriate.  See 

TCC Administrative Procedure 3-01-1AP and 03-01-2AP for complete details regarding 

the reporting, investigation and resolution process. 

 

3.  Resolution 

 

a. The College will take steps to prevent the recurrence of any discrimination or 

harassment found to have occurred upon an investigation, and to correct its 

discriminatory effects on the complainant and others, if appropriate. 

  



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-6 

b. Once the complaint determination is made, written notification will be provided to both 

the complainant and respondent, informing them of the determination of the complaint 

and the subsequent appeals process. 

 

c. If the decision regarding an employee or student complaint is not satisfactory for the 

complainant or respondent, it may be appealed to the Equity Appeals Committee 

(Appeals Committee).  The College offers both parties an appeal from determination of 

responsibility, from a college’s dismissal of a formal complaint or any allegations 

therein, on the following bases: procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the 

matter, newly discovered evidence that could affect the outcome of the matter, and/or 

Title IX personnel (investigators, coordinators and decision makers) had a conflict of 

interest or bias that affected the outcome of the matter.  The complainant or respondent 

must file a written appeal to the Equity Office within seven (7) calendar days after the 

decision is rendered.  The  Appeals Committee may adjudicate the complaint based on 

the records or may call witnesses or examine other documents as deemed necessary.  

The Appeals Committee will issue a final decision to the student or employee within 

fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving the appeal.   The decision of the Appeals 

Committee will be final and binding. 

 

 

E.  RETALIATION 

 

1. Retaliatory acts include adverse actions taken against the person who makes, supports, or 

participates in  a complaint of discrimination, sexual misconduct, or harassment. 

 

2. Students and/or employees who believe that retaliatory actions have been taken against 

them for having filed a complaint of discrimination, sexual misconduct or harassment, or 

having provided testimony in an investigation should notify the College Equity Officer and 

Title IX Coordinator.  Any such reports will be investigated and findings of retaliatory 

conduct will be dealt with through appropriate action. 

 

 

F.  CONFIDENTIALITY/PUBLIC RECORDS 

 

1. All information regarding discrimination, harassment, retaliation, and sexual misconduct 

will remain confidential to the extent possible to provide for an effective investigation, and 

as allowed by law. 

 

2. Only those individuals necessary for the investigation and resolution of the complaint shall 

be involved. All parties to the complaint, including witnesses, should treat the matter under 

investigation with discretion and have respect for the reputation of everyone involved.   

 
3. Written records developed through the use of an internal complaint process are confidential 

in accordance with state law until a final determination is made. 

 



 

Equal Access/Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment 

Tallahassee Community College 

District Board of Trustees Policy  Page 3.01-7 

 

G.  FALSE COMPLAINTS 

 

Any person who knowingly files a false complaint of discrimination, harassment, retaliation, or 

sexual misconduct against another will be in violation of this policy. 

 

 

H.  DISCIPLINE 

 

Violation of this policy shall result in appropriate corrective and/or disciplinary action. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Construction Status Report 

 

 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of various construction, renovation, remodeling and site 
improvement projects at all TCC locations for the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached Construction Status report details the noteworthy construction and renovation 
projects being undertaken to support the educational mission of the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All construction and renovation projects are funded prior to approval, with most being funded 
from capital improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 

 



CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT – AS OF AUGUST 2020 
 
 
MAIN CAMPUS (SITE 1) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – HSS 118 100% TBD Complete 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – SM 128 25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – SM 137 25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – CT 107 5% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – HSS 110 5% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – HSS 159 5% TBD Underway 

AMTC Welding Lab 10% TBD 
Plans review complete. EDA Site 
Certificate approved. CMAR RFQ award 
pending EDA and August board approval.  

Conversion of TESA Locks 
to C-Cure (Main Campus) 100% June 2020 Complete 

Sidewalk Repairs, 
Elimination of Trip Hazards Continuous On-going Ground 955 Trip Hazards and Replaced 

25 sections of Sidewalk 
Hurst Museum 
Renovations 25% TBD Underway 

SUSTAINABILITY % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Hydration Stations Continuous On-going Prevented 146,459 Plastic Bottles from 
going to landfills 

Recycled Plastic 
Lumber/Furniture Continuous On-going Prevented 1,567,000 Plastic Bags from 

going to landfills 

GADSDEN CENTER (SITE 2) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
None to report    

FLORIDA PUBLIC SAFETY INSTITUTE (SITE 3) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
None to report    



Page 2 
 

 
CENTER FOR INNOVATION (SITE 4) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
Elevator Upgrade 100% June 2020 Complete 

GHAZVINI CENTER FOR HEALTHCARE EDUCATION (SITE 5) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
None to report    

WAKULLA ENVIRNOMENTAL INSTITUTE (SITE 6) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 
None to report    

 
FOUNDATION CLASSROOM RENOVATION SUMMARY 

Renovated Classroom(s) Cost to Date 
SM 116 - Classroom Renovations  $           69,028.36  
TPP 130 - Classroom Renovations  $           63,003.59  
TPP 205 - Classroom Renovations  $           66,282.17  
HSS 111 - Classroom Renovations  $           44,679.45  
SM 129 - Classroom Renovations  $           24,087.31  
HSS 118 - Classroom Renovations  $           81,727.29  
SM 128 - Classroom Renovations  $                        -    
SM 137 - Classroom Renovations  $                        -    
CT 107 - Classroom Renovations  $                        -    
HSS 110 - Classroom Renovations  $                        -    
HSS 159 - Classroom Renovations  $                        -    

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: RFQ 2020-05 Award Recommendation 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests approval from the District Board of Trustees for the award to Cook 
Brothers Inc., for Construction Manager at Risk services for a TCC Welding Technologies 
Laboratory project funded by EDA Grant No. 04_79_07370. 
 
Overview and Background 
The EDA Grant required that a separate solicitation be conducted for construction manager at 
risk services for the construction of a TCC Welding Technologies Laboratory project. The 
specific RFQ was drafted, reviewed and approved by EDA and was released to the public on 
June 23, 2020. The College received complete and acceptable submittals from the below 
three vendors on July 14, 2020 as a result of its Request for Qualifications (RFQ).  
 
Allstate Construction, Inc.  
Childers Construction Company 
Cook Brothers, Inc. 
 
Based on the criteria outlined in the RFQ, the submittals were evaluated by a committee in 
two parts. Part one consisted of a review and scoring based on the evaluation criteria outlined 
in the RFQ and the responses submitted. The three vendors were then invited to participate 
in a virtual presentation and Q&A session for Part two of the evaluation process. 
 
Based upon the qualifications submitted and the results of the two-part evaluation process, 
Cook Brothers, Inc. is recommended for the award. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This construction contract will be funded by EDA Grant No. 04_79_07370. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None 
 



Recommended Action 
Approve the recommended construction manager at risk, Cook Brothers Inc., for the TCC 
Welding Technologies Laboratory project. 
 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 17, 2020 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

 ______________________ 

SUBJECT: Fund Analysis - July 

 

 
Item Description 
This item is to provide the Board a summary of the College’s operating revenues and 
expenses as of 7/28/2020. 
 
Overview and Background 
As directed in the Florida Public Community College Accounting Manual, revenues from state 
appropriations, student tuition and fees, interest earned, and other contributions are recorded 
and monitored in the College’s operating fund (fund 1).  Expenditures for direct instruction 
expenses are also recorded in the operating fund. 
 
In accordance with Florida Statutes (1011.01), the Board of Trustees must approve the 
College’s operating fund budget each fiscal year. The College monitors the operating fund 
activity to ensure approved budget limits are maintained. Additionally, the Board has 
requested a report of all purchases over $100,000, but less than $325,000. The report for the 
month of July is attached to this item. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
For information only, no Board action required. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The College continues to be in sound financial condition. 
 
Recommended Action 
For information only, no Board action required. 

 



REVENUE Received July % of YTD 

Budgeted Year to Date Revenues Budget

Student Fees 24,638,626$      1,031,622 $1,031,622* 4%

State Support 33,570,994        2,309,612          2,484,057.00     7%

Federal Support 490,000             15,551               23,706.23          3%

*Other Revenue 2,530,000          164,231             200,976.78        6%

Non-Revenue Sources 1,383,431          -                    -                    0%

TOTAL REVENUE 62,613,051$      3,521,017$        3,521,017$        6%

EXPENSES Expended July % of YTD 

Budgeted Year to Date Expenses Expenses

PERSONNEL COSTS

Administrative 3,334,838$        266,240$           266,240$           8%

Instructional 12,700,504        1,205,951          1,205,951          9%

Non-Instructional 17,618,054        1,330,832          1,330,832          8%

OPS 5,181,486          339,799             339,799             7%

Personnel Benefits 10,528,169        876,737             876,737             8%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 49,363,051$      4,019,559$        4,019,559$        8%

CURRENT EXPENSES

Services 4,069,320$        226,740$           226,740$           6%

Material & Supplies 2,321,199          272,577             272,577             12%

Other Current Charges 6,609,481          620,067             620,067             9%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 13,000,000$      1,119,384$        1,119,384$        9%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 250,000$           -$                  -$                  0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 62,613,051$      5,138,943$        5,138,943$        8%

Tallahassee Community College

Fund Analysis

Unrestricted Current Fund

As of July 28, 2020

* - the July 'Student Fees' reflect the summer semester tuition and fees only. Fall semester fees collected will 

be shown during the August period. 



Purchase 

Order

Purchase 

Order Date Supplier

Total PO 

Amount Description Approval/Exemption

PO-012188 7/1/2020 Instructure, Inc. 179,314.00
Canvas subscription for services andPO-012232 

support

FAC6A14.0734(2)(g) Information technology resources defined 

as all forms of technology used to create, process, store, 

transmit, exchange and use information in various forms of voice, 

video and data, and shall also include the personnel costs and 

contracts that provide direct information technology support 

consistent with each individual college's information technology 

plan.

PO-012232 7/2/2020 SHI 175,251.82 Microsoft Licenses DMS State Contract # 43230000-15-02

PO-012239 7/2/2020
Andrews, Crabtree, Knox & 

Longfellow, LLP
44,014.00

Legal services for TCC District Board of 

Trustrees

Exempt per FAC 6A14.0734 (2) (f) Professional services, 

including, but not limited to, artistic services, instructional 

services, health services, academic program - reviews, lectures 

by individuals, attorneys, legal services, auditors, and 

management consultants

PO-012306 7/6/2020 Talquin Electric Cooperative 310,000.00 Electricity for FPSI Campus
EXEMPT FROM SOLICITATION PER 6A-14.0734 (2) (E) 

SINGLE OR SOLE SOURCE

PO-012321 7/6/2020
Hayes e-Government 

Resources, Inc.
300,000.00 Hosted Avaya Phone Contract, year 4 of 8

FAC6A14.0734(2)(g) Information technology resources defined 

as all forms of technology used to create, process, store, 

transmit, exchange and use information in various forms of voice, 

video and data, and shall also include the personnel costs and 

contracts that provide direct information technology support 

consistent with each individual college's information technology 

plan.

Issued in July 2020

Purchase Orders from $100,000 to $324,999 +



PO-012330 7/7/2020 Workday, Inc. 300,000.00 Travel expenses for Workday

FAC6A14.0734(2)(g) Information technology resources defined 

as all forms of technology used to create, process, store, 

transmit, exchange and use information in various forms of voice, 

video and data, and shall also include the personnel costs and 

contracts that provide direct information technology support 

consistent with each individual college's information technology 

plan.

PO-012353 7/7/2020 Cheney Brothers 250,000.00 Food products for FPSI Cafateria
EXEMPT FROM THE SOLICITATION PROCESS PER 6A-

14.0734 (2) (D) FOOD

PO-012360 7/7/2020 Reinhart Food Service 300,000.00 Food products for FPSI Cafateria
EXEMPT FROM THE SOLICITATION PROCESS PER 6A-

14.0734 (2) (D) FOOD

PO-012455 7/9/2020 City of Tallahassee 124,250.00
Electricity, stormwater, fire, gas/heating & water 

& sewer for Ghazvini Health Care Center

EXEMPT FROM SOLICITATION PER 6A-14.0734 (2) (E) 

SINGLE OR SOLE SOURCE

PO-012527 7/14/2020
Dept. of Management 

Services/Telecommunications
124,218.00 Local and Long Distance Telephone Services

EXEMPT FROM SOLICITATION PER 6A-14.0734 (2) (E) 

SINGLE OR SOLE SOURCE

PO-012580 7/20/2020 Centennial Bank 115,500.00 Monthly lease payments for Wakulla Center
EXEMPT FROM SOLICITATION PER 6A-14.0734 (2) (E) 

SINGLE OR SOLE SOURCE

PO-012617 7/23/2020 Bryant Miller Olive P.A. 130,000.00 Legal services for UFF unionization procedures

Exempt per FAC 6A14.0734 (2) (f) Professional services, 

including, but not limited to, artistic services, instructional 

services, health services, academic program - reviews, lectures 

by individuals, attorneys, legal services, auditors, and 

management consultants.


	Top
	1.	June 15, 2020 Meeting
	June Minutes

	2.	Board Self-Evaluation
	Board Self Evaluation Memo (August 2020)
	Board Of Trustees data table (July 312020)

	3.	Election of Officers
	Election of Officers

	4.	BMO
	Attorney Invoice
	Bryant Miller Olive, P.A (May 2020)
	Bryant Miller Olive, P.A (June 2020)
	Bryant Miller Olive, P.A (June 2020) -1

	5.	Human Resource Report
	August 2020 Board Agenda Item
	Board Report for August 2020

	6.	Architect Invoice
	Architect Memo Template_August2020
	DAG Architects_20037_TCC Center for _20037_0620_07-10-2020

	7.	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent - August
	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent - August

	8.	Sponsored Programs - Provider - August
	Sponsored Programs - Provider - August

	9.	TCC Foundation Update
	Update Memo
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting Final Page One 6-30-20
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting 6-30-14 Page 2
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting Final 7-31-20

	10.	2020-2021 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards, Public Charter Schools and Private Schools
	Dual Enrollment Board Cover Sheet 8_17_2020
	Christ Classical Academy 20-21
	Community Christian School 20_21
	Crossroad Academy Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 20_21
	Community Leadership Academy 20_21
	Florida State University Schools Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 20_21
	Gadsden County Schools Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 20_21
	John Paul II Catholic School 2020_2021
	Leon County Schools Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 20-21
	North Florida 20_21
	Providence 20_21
	Robert F. Munroe 20_21
	Savary Academy Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 20_21
	Tree of Life 2020_21
	Maclay School 2020_2021
	Wakulla Christian 20_21
	Wakulla County Schools Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 20_21

	11.	Academic Curriculum Changes
	Curriculum Board Item
	Curriculum Attachment August 2020 Board Meeting

	12.	Annual Inventory of Property Assets
	Annual Inventory - August 2020 Board Meeting

	13.	Disposition of Surplus Property Assets
	Disposal of Surplus Property - August 2020
	Surplus Equipment for BOT Approval (August 2020)

	14.	Policy Changes
	Board Agenda Item Memo
	Equal Access Equal Opportunity Discrimination Sexual Misconduct and Unlawful Harassment - Marked Changes (003)
	Equal Access Equal Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment - Final

	15.	Construction Status Report
	Construction Status Memo Template_June2020
	CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT_NewTemplate_August2020

	16.	RFQ 2020-05 Award Recommendation
	Basic item memo template_CMAR Services-WeldingLab

	17.	Fund Analysis
	Fund Analysis - July 2020 (1)
	July 2020 Fund Analysis
	Board Item- PO&#39;s-$100-324K + July 2020

	Bottom

